
CENTRAL ROCHDALE AREA FORUM

Monday 7 November 2016 at 6.30pm
St Patrick's RC Primary School, Foxholes Road, 

Rochdale  OL12 0ET

AGENDA

1.  Introductions and Code of Conduct 

2.  PACT meeting - Greater Manchester Police 

3.  Minutes of previous meetings, matters arising and updates 

4.  Open Forum 

5.  Ward News 

6.  Date and time of the next meeting 

Thursday 1 December 2016 at 6.30pm
Wardleworth Community Centre

Public Document Pack



Rochdale Township Area Forums
Code of Conduct

It is established by and for the Rochdale Township Area Forums that the following 
code of conduct will govern the behaviour of their members.  The code of conduct will 
be enforced by the Chair of this meeting.

Conduct at meetings
Members will at all times observe accepted practice while taking part in discussions 
to:

• Be courteous to each other and support and assist other members in finding
the best possible solution to problems being discussed

• Allow each other the opportunity to speak and comment
• Attempt as far as possible to stick to the agenda and assist each other to

reach effective conclusions
• Operate within the constitution where applicable
• Aggression, violence, threats, harassment, intimidation and other disruptive

behaviour in the forum will not be tolerated
• The term ‘members’ applies to all those present at the meeting

Confidentiality
• Members will refrain from mentioning specific individual cases which may

cause embarrassment or identification of an individual
• Any information or item shared that is of a confidential nature will not be

disclosed to anyone else apart from members of the Forum in order to allow
the business of the meeting to proceed.

Dignity at meetings
• All those who attend Forum meetings have the right to be treated with dignity

and respect regardless of their race, colour, ethnic or national origin,
nationality, gender, marital status, age, sexuality, religion or any other matter
which causes people to be discriminated against

• The meeting will do all that is in its power to oppose all forms of harassment
and bullying

Individual Members
• Should disclose any personal interest that they consider may affect or

influence their approach to the matter being discussed
• Must show respect in all their dealings by observing reasonable standards

and courtesy, and by not seeking to take unfair advantage by virtue of their
position

Political Affiliation
• Even though individual members may be affiliated to/or be members of a

political party, they may not represent a political party in their role as
individual members of this Forum

• Elected Members attending meetings outside the ward they represent may be
allowed to speak, at the discretion of the Chair.

Breach of Code of Conduct
• If anyone attending the Forum meeting does not abide by the code of

conduct, the Chair will have the discretion to decide on an appropriate course
of action.  The Chair may either issue a warning, ask the person to withdraw
from a particular agenda item or exclude that person from the meeting.

• Where a person is asked to leave a meeting, the Chair will have the discretion
to decide whether or not that person is welcome to attend future meetings.

• The Chair at his/her discretion, may close the meeting if he/she deems it
necessary Page 1

Agenda Item 1



CENTRAL ROCHDALE AREA FORUM
Monday, 11 July 2016

St Patrick’s RC Primary School

MINUTES

Present: J. Murphy, R. Hartley, L. Baugh, A. Allinson, Z. Hussain, S. Lisnys, C. Lord

Officers: G. Finch (Township & Engagement Officer) (Chair), Sgt A. Twidale (GMP), PCSO 
Mahmood (GMP)

Councillors: Councillor S. Ali and Councillor B. Sheerin (attended in connection with item 5 on the 
agenda – Senior Citizens Forum)

Apologies: P. Burke, B. Lloyd, A. Miah, N. Sunderland, Councillor I. Ahmed, Councillor A. Ahmed 
and D. Clarke.

69 INTRODUCTIONS AND CODE OF CONDUCT
The meeting was chaired by Gary Finch (Township and Engagement Officer). Everyone 
was welcomed to the Forum and reminded to observe and respect the code of conduct for 
the duration of the meeting.

70 PACT MEETING - GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
Sergeant Twidale and PCSO Mahmood attended the meeting for this item.

The Forum was reminded that Neighbourhood Policing was now in operation and had been 
since May 2016. It was hoped that this approach would enable officers to develop a good 
working knowledge of the Ward and officers would be in a better position to respond to 
problems.

It was explained that a traffic operation had been carried out last week following requests 
from the local community about speeding on Entwistle Road. The feedback received 
indicated this operation had been a success in that a number of offences had materialised – 
speeding, no insurance, no MOT, no seat belts being worn and mobile phone use. 

The Forum was also informed that police officers had recently been involved in dealing with 
incidents of anti-social behaviour on the Falinge Estate which was an ongoing operation.

A resident asked which number would be best to contact the police 999/101 or the other 
numbers regularly provided at Forum meetings. It was explained that 999 should only be 
used in emergencies whilst 101 should be used in all non-emergency cases. Phoning these 
numbers would also ensure calls were logged.

If the other numbers were contacted police response times would possibly be longer.

It was also brought to the attention of GMP that the area where Clementia Street meets 
Duke Street is potentially dangerous because of parked cars. GMP said they would 
investigate this matter further.

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



71 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING, MATTERS ARISING AND UPDATES
The minutes of the Central Rochdale Area Forum held on Monday 25th January 2016 at St 
Patrick’s RC Primary School were approved as a correct record subject to the following 
amendment being made:

Remove: Recycling Centre Sign – It was reported that the above sign should be removed 
as the recycling centre (Jarvis Street) is no longer in operation.

Minute should read: Recycling Centre Sign – it was reported that signs on Whitworth Road 
and Wellington Street advertising the recycling centre at the junction of Taylor Street / 
Rivington Street be removed as the centre is no longer in operation.

There were no matters arising.

The following updates were provided:

- The Growth Project – The Forum was informed that Karen Hayday, who attended 
the Central Rochdale Area Forum on Monday, 25th January 2016 at St Patrick’s RC 
Primary School seeking financial support for the Growth Project had provided a 
report on the initiative. This was made available to the Forum

- All the following issues have been reported to the appropriate service:

The removal of the Recycling Centre sign (minute subsequently amended – see 
above)

The damaged grass verge on Taylor Street Car Park. (Subsequently amended to 
Grassmere Street Car Park).

Littering near to the Ambulance Station on Whitehall Street.

The traffic sign on Whitehall Street.

Blocked gullies on Whitworth Road.

- Additional bollard – Alleyway near to Howard Street – It was reported that the 
Council had no jurisdiction over this as the land / alleyway in question was the 
responsibility of Rochdale Boroughwide Housing.

- Inconsiderate Parking – The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum 
that he had attended the site with the resident to understand the concern and had 
subsequently reported it to the car parks manager. He understood work was to be 
undertaken to deter inconsiderate parking. No time frame for this was known.

- Globe Taxis – The Township and Engagement Officer informed the Forum that he 
had visited Globe Taxis on three occasions to ask that taxi’s refrain from parking 
across the dropped kerb on Princess Street. It was reported that the taxi firm had 
reassured the Township and Engagement Officer that all drivers had been advised of 
this. However highways had been asked to investigate if a bollard could be placed 
on the footway should the problem happen again.

Page 3



- Gower Street Youth Base – The Forum was informed that a temporary licence 
(11/7/16 – 30/09/16) had been granted to Starfish Group Ltd to use the building 
whilst carrying out flood resilience works in the area.

- Gully accessibility – Buckley Brook, Buckley Road – No progress had been made on 
this.

The minutes of the Central Rochdale Area Forum held on Thursday 10th March 2016 at 
Wardleworth Community Centre were circulated for information. These minutes had already 
been approved.

The minutes of the Central Rochdale Area Forum held on Thursday 2nd June 2016 at 
Wardleworth Community Centre were circulated for information and will be agreed at the 
Area Forum meeting to be held at Wardleworth Community Centre in September.

72 OPEN FORUM
The following issues were raised during the Open Forum:

1. Concerns were raised about parking congestion on Rugby Road at certain times of 
the day. In general this is caused when people are visiting the Mosque and St 
Patrick’s school.

2. The road and footpaths in the vicinity of Rugby Road are in poor condition. The area 
also suffers from constant litter problems.

3. HGV’s are causing damage to the grass verges whilst visiting / leaving the industrial 
units via Ralph Street.

4. Many pavements are overgrown with weeds and trees are overgrown in the Rugby 
Road area.

5. Knotweed is present on the corner of Rugby Road.

6. Fly tipping is problematical in the area. Ralph Street and Rugby Road were cited as 
examples.

7. A resident asked if double yellow lines could be introduced on Haynes Street in 
preparation of the new Netto opening.

8. Littering problems adjacent to 143/189 Whitehall Street, the rear of 53 Industry Road 
and alleyway at the rear of Denton Street / Millford Street. 

9. Bins are being left out at the end of the alleyway at Denton Street / Millford Street.

It was commented that many of the properties referred to above (points 8 & 9) were 
privately rented properties. Although Enforcement Officers had visited the site more 
still needs to be done. Closer / better working relations need to be developed with 
landlords.

10.A number of blocked gullies on Whitworth Road (between Townhead Junction and 
Mizzy Road) were reported:

Page 4



Right hand side of Whitworth Road (facing up Whitworth Road)

- Two near Netto near street light number 4
- Outside Waggs Pooch Parlour
- Outside Trendy Haircuts
- Outside Elite Framing
- Two gullies outside the Alpine Gastoph
- Near to the bus stop on Greenbank Road

Left hand side of Whitworth Road (facing up Whitworth Road)

- End of Queen Street where it meets Whitworth Road
- Gulley, one up from Banson Tool Hire near to street light number 4
- Two gullies before Howard Street
- Next to pelican crossing at Taylor Street
- Outside the washer shop, opposite the Alpine Gastoph

11.Concerns were raised about the problems still being experienced at the Townhead 
Junction – congestion, re-timing of lights is required.

12 A resident commented that the obstructions placed on Cronkeyshaw
     Common to deter traveller encroachment may be working as the last 
     traveller encroachment was elsewhere – Dunhelm Car Park - in the 
     Ward.

13 A Ward Councillor asked what the policy on ‘H’ markings was as a resident had 
contacted him to say that the marking outside her house on Park Road had been 
removed (due to road works) and she had been told that they would not be replaced.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

     14. Illegal tipping is a problem on Bellfield Road near to the health centre

     15. A blocked gully outside 106 Greenbank Road was reported.

     16. A pothole and the poor condition of the road was reported outside 109 
           Greenbank Road. The resident was informed this had been reported.

      17 The road sign on Whitehall Street is still behind the lamp post.

      18 A resident raised concerns about the planning application that has   
           been submitted regarding a housing development on Park Road / Red  
           Lane. It was stated that any objections in relation to any planning 
           application should be submitted via the planning process. It was also 
           stated that the land in question had suffered from anti-social behaviour 
           over the years therefore building on the land may put an end to this
           particular problem.

Page 5



73 SENIOR CITIZENS FORUM
Councillor Sheerin and Christine Lord attended the meeting for this item.

The Forum was informed that the role of the Senior Citizens Forum (SCF) was to represent 
older people within the borough and champion the issues that were important to this group. 
It was also explained that the Leader of the Council had a regular quarterly meeting with 
pensioner representatives.

However it was acknowledged that the BME (Black Minority Ethnic) community were under 
represented on the SCF therefore nominations were being sought.

Anyone interested in becoming a member of the SCF should contact Councillor Sheerin, 
Christine Lord (Chair SCF) or the Township and Engagement Officer.

74 MEMBERS/WARD FUNDS
It was explained to the Forum that £8k was available from Ward Funds whilst each Ward 
Councillor has a Members fund of £2k.

Rochdale Township Fund Terms and Conditions for 2016/17 were also made available to 
the Forum.

75 WARD NEWS
The Forum was informed that some additional monies had been acquired to improve pot 
holes within the borough. Residents were encouraged to report pot holes to their Ward 
Councillors.

A number of new housing schemes – Entwistle Road and Ramsay Street / Ramsay Terrace 
were highlighted.

A general discussion took place about future venues for area forum meetings. It was 
explained that Wardleworth Community Centre and St Patrick’s RC Primary School were 
used at present. Although attendance at Wardleworth Community Centre is generally 
reasonable, attendance at St Patrick’s has been poor. It was acknowledged that advertising 
/ publicity to support St Patrick’s could have been better and this needs to be looked at. 
However this would have resource implications. It was stressed that it was important that 
the right venues within the Ward are identified and publicised accordingly to maximise 
resident attendance.

76 DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
Thursday 1st September 2016
Wardleworth Community Centre
6.30pm – 8.30pm

No date for the next Area Forum meeting at St Patrick’s RC Primary School had been 
arranged as yet.

Page 6



CENTRAL ROCHDALE AREA FORUM
Thursday, 1 September 2016

Wardleworth Community Centre

MINUTES

Present: B. Lloyd (Chair), M. Sheraz, D. Miah, S. Qureshi, S. M. Miah, M. Burke, J. Murphy, D. 
Chaudhury, A. Hoque, A. Maseed, N. Hewka, N. Yasmin, H. Chaudhury and G. Bahar 

Officers: Sgt G. Martin (GMP) and G. Finch (Township & Engagement Officer)

Councillors: Councillor S. Ali and Councillor A. Ahmed

Apologies: R. Hartley and A. Miah

77 INTRODUCTIONS AND CODE OF CONDUCT
The meeting was chaired by Beryl Lloyd. The Chair welcomed all to the meeting and 
reminded Forum members to observe and respect the code of conduct.

Apologies had been received from Roger Hartley and Afzal Miah.

78 PACT MEETING - GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
Sgt Glyn Martin attended the meeting for this item.

It was reported that during the previous three months the following incidents had been 
reported:

Burglary (dwelling) 14
Aggravated burglary 4
Burglary (other) 23
Theft from motor vehicle 15
Theft of motor vehicle 5
Drug offences 12
Hate crime 1

In addition to the above the Forum was informed that two traffic operations (Entwistle Road 
area) had been undertaken in the Ward following concerns raised by residents about 
speeding in the area. As a result of these operations numerous drivers had been cautioned 
/ issued with a penalty notice following offences being committed. Offences committed 
included – speeding, no insurance, no seat belts being worn, alcohol / drug use and mobile 
phone use.

The following comments / question / issues were raised by residents:

1. I’m pleased that traffic operations have been undertaken, however speeding still 
continues. Wardleworth and Greenbank Road area were cited as problem areas.

Response: This is a difficult one to police or eradicate. Only traffic police have the 
facilities to monitor speeding. There is also extensive traffic calming within the area 
which should help reduce the prblems.

Page 7



Residents were encouraged to report incidents of speeding on the 101 number with 
as much detail as possible.

2. Greenbank Road / Maud Street suffers from cars driving the wrong way in the one-
way system.

Response: This will be reported to enforcement.

3. Ramsay Street, East Street and North Street experienced anti-social behaviour. 
Loud music, drug dealing and alcohol related problems being identified.

Response: The GMP representative present stated he would communicate this 
information as the areas in question could be registered as hot spots.

Residents were again encouraged to report any anti-social behaviour issues on the 
101 number with as much information as possible.

4. A resident thanked GMP for the approach during Ramadan, however it was 
highlighted that beggars are still congregating outside the Mosque and there seems 
to have been a decrease in the visibility of PCSO’s and Police Officers within the 
Ward.

Response: It was acknowledged that there has been a reduction of Neighbourhood 
Officers within the Ward. The main reason for this is that a number of PCSO’s had 
recently been recruited as Police Officers and no plans are currently in place to 
recruit PCSO’s. 

5. A discussion took place about the Jalal Uddin murder trial that was currently ongoing 
at Manchester Crown Court. Some residents raised concerns about the likely 
response within the Ward after the verdict is given.

Response: The Police Officer and Ward Councillors present agreed that residents 
needed to remain calm, any outcomes following the trial had to be handled 
sensitively and plans were in place to deal with issues in the Ward following the 
verdict.

6. Residents raised concerns about the recent traveller encampment in the Ward: 

- Confusion existed about the status of the authorised traveller site within the Ward 
insofar of the site being temporary or permanent.

- The site still needed to be cleaned.

- Could the travellers be charged with criminal damage following the recent entry 
onto the land

Response: The GMP representative present was under the impression that the site 
was permanent however it was classed as a temporary stopping site. Other views 
within the meeting did not agree with this interpretation.

Page 8



The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this matter further and 
report the need for the site to be cleaned.

           It was explained that it was very unlikely that criminal damage charges
           could be brought against the travellers. Charges could only be 
           considered if evidence was available. 

79 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING, MATTERS ARISING AND UPDATES
The minutes of the Central Rochdale Area Forum held at Wardleworth Community Centre 
on Thursday 2nd June 2016 were approved as a correct record.

The minutes of the Central Rochdale Area Forum held at St Patrick’s RC Primary School on 
Monday 11th July 2016 were circulated to the Forum for information purposes. These 
minutes will be agreed at the next Area Forum meeting to be held at St Patrick’s.

No updates or matters arising were provided.

80 OPEN FORUM
The following issues were raised during the Open Forum:

1. A resident raised concerns that the elevated section of footway adjacent to the taxi 
rank in the town centre had not been replaced during the transformation works which 
made it more difficult for disabled people / wheelchair users to access taxis.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to investigate this further.

2. A resident who lived on Halifax Road complained that he suffered from neighbour 
nuisance.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report this problem.

3. A resident asked if a litter bin could be sited on the corner of Lomax Street / 
Yorkshire Street as the area suffers from problems of littering.

The Forum agreed to this.

4. A resident who uses the Link4Life Leisure Centre on Entwistle Road informed the 
Forum that users can see right into the houses on the new development on Entwistle 
Road.

A Ward Councillor advised the Forum that the housing developer was aware of this.

5. A Ward Councillor advised that the parking arrangements on the new properties 
were problematic in design as they fronted the main road.

The Forum was informed that the design would have had to have gone through the 
planning process and would have received comments from Highways. Residents 
would have also had the opportunity to object to the proposals.

6. Resident’s raised a number of concerns about blocked gullies on Whitworth Road, 
Entwistle Road, adjacent to the Tanners Arms on Whitworth Road and Gower Street. 

Page 9



It was commented that any blocked gullies should remain on the ‘to do’ list until they 
are working effectively.

7. A resident reported that some left over rendering had been disgarded on the 
pavement close to Channings Childcare and that there was also a portaloo on its 
side on nearby land.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report this matter.

8. A resident advised that a caravan was parked on Whitehall Street and was possibly 
causing an obstruction to the footway.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report this.

9. A representative from the Kashmir Youth Project (KYP) and Rochdale Councils 
Youth Service provided information on the services available to young people in the 
Ward. It was also explained that youth provision is proving more difficult to provide 
because of the reduction in resources. However an exercise is being undertaken to 
identify where need exists.

As a consequence of the above the Forum agreed that the following resolution be 
noted:

‘Central Rochdale Area Forum is concerned about the lack of provision available to 
young people and that more resources are needed’.

10.A resident raised concerns about the amount of rubbish present within the alleygated 
area behind her home on Greenbank Road.

The Township and Engagement Officer agreed to report this.

81 SENIOR CITIZENS FORUM
This item had been placed on the agenda by Councillor Sheerin who was subsequently 
unable to attend the meeting.

The Forum was informed that the role of the Senior Citizens Forum (SCF) was to represent 
older people within the borough and champion the issues that were important to this group.

However the SCF is under represented in terms of BME (Black Minority Ethnic) 
representation. As a consequence any ‘older people’ interested in joining the group should 
contact the Township & Engagement Officer in the first instance.

82 WARD NEWS
No Ward news was available.

83 DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The date and time of the next Area Forum meeting at Wardleworth Community Centre was 
Thursday 1st September 2016 – 6.30pm – 8.30pm.

It was hoped that the next Area Forum meeting to be held at St Patrick’s RC Primary 
School would be Monday 7th November 2016 – 6.30pm – 8.30pm. However at this moment 

Page 10



in time the school had not confirmed availability. Once a date is confirmed this will be 
circulated.

Page 11


	Agenda
	1 Introductions and Code of Conduct
	3 Minutes of previous meetings, matters arising and updates
	Minutes - Central Rochdale Area Forum on 1 Sept 2016


